
THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 
7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

May 8, 2017 AT 7:00 PM  
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. 1. March 13, 2017 
     2. March 27, 2017 Executive Session 
     3. April 24, 2017 Executive Session 
     4. May 2, 2017 SATM 
 

II. PUBLIC HEARING  
  

III. APPOINTMENTS/Resignations 
  B. David White, Fire Chief/Vote to appoint [Present: Chief Gary Nestor] 

 
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 
 Local Business Spotlight: Alternatives  
 
V. DECISIONS 

  C. Farmer Series Pouring Permit/Vote to establish a fee schedule  
  D. Alternatives / Request permission to hang a banner across Church Street from May 21st through June  
  4th to advertise their 32nd Annual Valley Friendship Tour event on June 3rd 2017. [Event approved July 18, 
  2016] 
  E. Northbridge Veterans’ Council/1) Request to hold the Memorial Day Parade in Whitinsville on  
  Monday, May 29, 2017 at 10:00 AM. 2) Request permission to use the Memorial Park for Memorial Day  
  exercises. 
   
 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

 F. Land Clearing update/Present: David Pickart, Conservation Agent, and Justin Arbuckle, and Barbara  
  McNamee, Members, Conservation Commission 

   
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
 G. 1) Public Auction  
      2) Whitinsville Library/Ancestry Digital Service  
           3) Annual Town Election - May 16, 2017 
      4) DPW Facility Bids  
      5) Firefighter’s Annual Spaghetti Supper 
 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  

     
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  
 
X. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
   

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 
Web: Post time-stamped copy □



BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 
March 13, 2017 

 
A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman James Marzec at 6:32 PM, 
Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present:  Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, 
Marzec, and Nolan.  Also Present: Theodore D. Kozak.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present 
 
Open Session Adjourned:  6:33 PM 
 
Executive Session Convened: 6:33 PM 
 
Executive Session Adjourned:  6:55 PM 
 
Open Session Reconvened: 7:01 PM 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES A. February 6, 2017. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Nolan to 
approve the February 6, 2017 minutes with the readings omitted. Vote yes/ Unanimous. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING/None 
 
APPOINTMENTS/B. Rochelle Thomson, Inspector of Animals/Vote to nominate Note: Appointment 
is subject to certification by the State. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the 
reappointment of Rochelle Thompson to Inspector of Animals. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 
CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT / Local Business Spotlight:  Purgatory Beer Co. LLC, Linwood 
Mill/Present: Kevin Mulvehill. Mr. Mulvehill was present along with Brian Distefano to discuss Purgatory 
Beer Co. Mr. Distefano explained that they are still in the process of getting the building and permitting. 
They are currently working towards state and local licensing. Mr. Distefano stated that he and Mr. Mulvehill 
have been brewing beer together for about 5-7 years, and Mr. Mulvehill has brewed back to 1999. Mr. 
Distefano explained that they began brewing together with a brew kit that was a Christmas gift from his 
wife, and started in Mr. Mulvehill’s kitchen but due to the odor they moved to the garage. From that point 
it was something enjoyable for the both of them. After two years of work put forth of brewing it began to 
be good enough to sell in their friend’s opinion, and the idea of opening a brewery branched off of that. 
Upon searching they felt as though Northbridge was a very business friendly place and found an inspiring 
location at the Linwood Mills with a lot of potential for the space. Mr. Mulvehill explained they are both 
ecstatic to bring fresh beer to this area and believes there is a great opportunity. Mr. Mulvehill explained 
that they are what is called a Nano Brewery, which produces small batches. They are currently looking at 
three barrels, which is about 90-100 gallons a batch. The plan is for consumers to have the product within 
a month of it being brewed to keep it fresh. He stated they are looking to produce about 3-4 batches per 
week. The license is considered a famer brewery license, which comes from the State and allows them to 
sell the beer they brew to their customers to be consumed off-site. The Farmer Brewery license requires 
that raw materials be used from farms in the State of Massachusetts. Mr. Mulvehill announced that the 
potential hours would be Fridays from 5 PM - 8 PM, Saturdays 11 AM - 6 PM and potentially Sunday’s. 
He also announced that they will be looking into local outreach and working with charity’s to host events. 
They are hoping for an opening date of June 1, 2017. Mr. Mulvehill explained that they have been working 
to get the location set up, and the location itself is very special. He stated it gives off a vibe that you would 
expect in the Blackstone Valley. Selectman Athanas asked if they would be doing the brewing on site. Mr. 
Mulvehill replied they will be brewing on site. Selectman Ampagoomian stated he appreciated the statement 
of the heart of the Blackstone Valley. Selectman Ampagoomian stated if there was anything they needed, 



or direction to contact the Town Managers office for assistance.  
 
C. Mumford Knights of Columbus #365 / 1) Application for a Change of Manager [James Masterson] 
2) Application for a Change of Directors 3) Application for a change of Sunday Hours / Present: Plato 
Adams. Mr. Adams explained that the request is for a basic change of Manager and Directors. He explained 
there is also a request to change the Sunday Hours, which will give them greater flexibility in renting out 
the halls and hosting brunches along with the two annual breakfasts and the ability to offer mimosas and 
Bloody Marys. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to 1) approve the Change in Manager to Mr. 
James Masterson, 2) approve the application for the Change of Directors, and 3) approve the request to 
change the Sunday hours to open at 10 AM. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
D. Armenian Apostolic Church/1) Request to hang a banner across Church Street from April 16, 
2017 to April 30, 2017 in honor of “Martyr’s Day” 2) Request to hang a banner across Church Street 
from August 6, 2017 to August 20, 2017 to advertise their Annual Picnic to be held on Sunday, August 
20, 2017. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve 1) the request to hang a banner across 
Church Street from April 16, 2017 to April 30, 2017 in honor of “Martyr’s Day” and 2) the Request to hang 
a banner across Church Street from August 6, 2017 to August 20, 2017 to advertise their Annual Picnic to 
be held on Sunday, August 20, 2017. 
 
E. Pine Grove Cemetery deed/Elizabeth Austin [Lot No. 41, Hemlock Path North]. A motion/Mr. 
Nolan, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the purchase of Lot No. 41, Hemlock Path North to Elizabeth Austin. 
Vote yes/Unanimous. 
 
F Northbridge Firefighters/Request to hang a banner over Church Street from April 30, 2017 to May 
7, 2017 to advertise the annual spaghetti supper to be held on Saturday, May 20, 2017. A motion/Mr. 
Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to approve the request to hang a banner over Church Street from 
April 30, 2017 to May 7, 2017 to advertise the annual spaghetti supper to be held on Saturday, May 20, 
2017. Vote yes/Unanimous. 
 
G. Recreational Marijuana Establishments – Temporary Zoning Moratorium/Present: Brian 
Massey, Planning Board Chairman & R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner. Mr. Bechtholdt explained 
that the towns are looking at Temporary Moratoriums for the retail component of recreational marijuana. 
The Planning Board supports a moratorium which is an 18 month moratorium, which is a similar approach 
to the medical marijuana, of which is the need to review and understand the regulations which are not due 
to be drafted of April of next year. Mr. Bechtholdt reviewed the options. Of which, would require a town 
meeting vote. The Town also has the option of a local ballot question to prohibit all commercial business 
related to recreational marijuana establishments, which the Board of Selectmen would initiate. Looking 
further beyond that if that were to pass the Town would seek to adopt a zoning bylaw to prohibit the use. If 
the local ballot question were to fail the Town would be looking at zoning bylaw regulations to allow 
recreational marijuana establishment’s retail cultivation in certain places in town, designating time place 
and manor. The Town also has the option via a local ballot question to vote to limit the number of 
recreational marijuana establishments in town. Another option under a local ballot question to vote to allow 
onsite consumption. Mr. Bechtholdt explained there are a lot of variables that come into play and at this 
time it is appropriate that the town look to establish a temporary moratorium, which is specific to the retail 
component and does not impact private individual use. The Planning Board’s public hearing has been 
rescheduled for March 28, 2017. Selectman Athanas asked if the moratorium was separate than if the Board 
wanted to put a ballot question on to completely eliminate it from the town. Mr. Bechtholdt replied that was 
correct and could be done concurrently. Town Manager Kozak explained that the State is also looking at 
the current law that was passed this fall and there could be changes which would allow more time to see 
what the State does with the law and make a decision based off of the States amendments. Selectman Melia 
asked if it was a 2/3 vote for the moratorium as well. Mr. Bechtholdt replied it would be a zoning article, 



which would make it a 2/3 vote. Selectmen Melia asked if after that it would be up to the Selectmen at a 
later time to determine the route the Town takes. Mr. Bechtholdt explained if the Board wants to exercise 
the local option to consider prohibition that can be done in time for the next ballot. Selectman Melia asked 
who would determine the amount of facilities that would be allowed in the Town. Mr. Bechtholdt explained 
that the Town can limit the number of establishments in Town. Police Chief Warchol explained the law 
currently states 20% of all alcohol licenses will go to recreational marijuana. Selectman Ampagoomian 
asked if the State has come forward with any type of early warning to various Board’s and Police 
Department’s as to which direction they are looking to. Chief Warchol replied he has not heard there to be 
much desire to change the law from the State Legislator. Town Manager Kozak announced that he had 
heard the State was seeking to increase the taxes. Selectman Athanas asked if there was any way to eliminate 
marijuana advertisements in Town. Town Manager Kozak stated he did ask the building inspector to look 
into. Chairman Marzec asked if the town would be in any trouble by putting the moratorium in place and 
prohibiting marijuana in the community. Town Manager Kozak explained that the moratorium would have 
to pass at Town meeting and a ballot question.  
 
H. Economic Development Strategic Plan/Present: Brian Massey, Planning Board Chairman & R. 
Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that the Planning Board is working with 
Central Mass Regional Planning Commission (CMRPC) who has partnered with Pioneer Valley Planning 
Commission out of Springfield to prepare the plan for the Town. Funding for this initiative is from the 
community compact grant which the Town Manager helped secure, so it is at no cost to the Town. The 
Planning Board met with the representatives from CMRPC and Pioneer Valley last month, and municipal 
staff will be meeting with them later this month. The timeline for competition is aggressive but is feasible 
as the grant funds need to be expended by the end of June 2017. The Planning Board is scheduled to host a 
public forum on Tuesday, April 11, 2017 at 7 PM, at the Town Hall. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that the 
Economic Development Strategic Plan is a document that will help guide economic growth and 
development in Town through a series of stakeholder meetings, public forums and input sessions and will 
provide a zoning framework for the next 5 years. There will also be a 5 year action plan as well as an 
implementation plan. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that the aspects of an economic development plan is quality 
of life, housing, environmental, transportation, jobs, workforce development, zoning, permit streamlining, 
marketing, and creating partnerships with state and local partners, Chamber of Commerce, and Mass Office 
of Business Development (MBOD).  
 
I. Blackstone Valley National Heritage Corridor Commission / Northbridge Green and Clean Day, 
April 21 and 22, 2017 Present: Bonnie Combs, Marketing Director. Ms. Combs stated that last year it 
was a new event and did not have a large amount of participation due to that. She explained this year a lot 
of people have come forward to support the event. Ms. Combs explained that they are looking to engage 
the local business community to get employees out and cleaning the town. The event will be held at Whitin 
Park. Liability coverage is supplied to those helping along with litter pickers, safety vest, gloves, etc. Ms. 
Combs explained that she has been also working with the DPW. Selectman Melia asked if there was a 
particular area that would be the main focus. Ms. Combs replied they are currently working on a map of 
the areas they would like to target, and is mostly main Streets and water ways. Selectman Ampagoomian 
asked if volunteers have come forward yet. Ms. Combs replied she was waiting to update and receive 
permission from the Board. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Athanas to move item I from discussions 
to decisions. Vote yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Nolan to support 
Northbridge Green and Clean Day, April 21 and 22, 2017. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
J. Purple Heart Resolution/Present: William Audette. Mr. Audette explained the creation of the Purple 
Heart badge. He described that is was to be presented to soldiers for any singular meritorious action and 
permitted its wearer to pass Guards and Sentinels without challenge. The Purple Heart is now awarded to 
members of the US Armed Forces who have been killed or wounded in action against an enemy, and also 
to Soldiers how have suffered from maltreatment from being Prisoners of War. Cities and Towns have been 



honoring those soldiers by designating their communities as Purple Heart cities/towns. Mr. Audette stated 
that he proposed that the Town of Northbridge adopts a resolution by proclamation, designating 
Northbridge as a Purple Heart community. Mr. Audette explained that he has been in touch with the 
National Organization for Information regarding the designation. He stated he was told all that is needed is 
a proclamation from the Town’s Selectmen designating the Town as a Purple Heart community. The only 
cost to the Town would be to purchase the signs to be erected in the serval entrances to Town. Mr. Audette 
stated that he is also asking to be permitted to read the proclamation aloud at this year’s Memorial Day 
Services. Mr. Audette explained that the Memorial Day Committee will be asking those Veterans who have 
earned the Purple Heart in the Town of Northbridge to attend the Services and be honored. Mr. Audette 
explained he would put the proclamation together. Selectman Melia suggested four signs on the North, 
South, East, and West entrances of town. A motion/ Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to move 
item J. Purple Heart Resolution from discussion to decision. Vote yes/Unanimous. Chairman Marzec read 
aloud the Purple Heart Proclamation. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Athanas to support the Purple 
Heart Proclamation. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
K. Massachusetts School Building Authority update. Chairman Marzec gave a brief update on the 
feasibility study. Mr. Marzec explained that they are currently in the process of negotiating for an Owner’s 
Project Manager. The timeline has been set and hope that by April’s meeting Chairman Strazulla will 
present an update on to the Board on the progress. Selectman Melia asked which School this was for. 
Chairman Marzec stated it is to complete a feasibility study to determine if the Balmer School and the 
Elementary School should be kept as is, renovated or a construct a new building.  
 
KK. Town Manager position. Chairman Marzec stated that the Town Manager Screening committee has 
specified that a salary range will be necessary to include in the Town Manger’s position advertisement. 
Chairman Marzec stated he looked into other communities like Shrewsbury who is at $175,000 and other 
communities that were in the $130,000-$135,000 range. Selectman Ampagoomian stated he suggests 
$135,000. Selectman Melia stated that in his time with the Town he has seen it kept in close range of the 
School Superintendent Salary but slightly lower and suggested looking into that as an option. Selectman 
Melia explained that he does believe that you get what you pay for. Town Manager Kozak explained that 
the Committee is hoping to have the advertisement in the next Beacon, which would put a time constraint 
on the decision. Selectman Athanas suggested a range be decided tonight and suggested $135,000-
$150,000. Town Manager Kozak stated he felt as though $135,000 is too low of a base. Selectman Athanas 
suggested $135,000-$150,000. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to move item KK Town Manager 
Position from discussions to decisions. Vote yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. 
Nolan to set the Town Manager salary range from $135,000 - $150,000 commencer with education and 
experienced. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
L. 1) Community Reading Program - Town Manager Kozak announced that he attended the Community 
Reading Program at the Balmer School on Dr. Seuss’s birthday, March 2nd. Town Manager Kozak stated 
that the class was very attentive and he had an enjoyable time at the school. 2) Annual Blackstone Valley 
Home & Business Expo - Town Manager Kozak announced that the Blackstone Valley Chamber of 
Commerce will be hosting the 19th Annual Home and Business Expo on March 18, 2017 from 10 AM to 2 
PM at the Northbridge High School Field House. The Expo is a great opportunity for business owners to 
market themselves.  3) Local Historic District Study Committee - Town Manager Kozak announced that 
a property Owners Informational & Feedback Meeting will be held Thursday, March 16, 2017, 7:00 PM –
Town Hall. Residents are encouraged to attend. 4) Senator Michael Moore Legislative Open House - 
Town Manager Kozak stated that a public forum is being held on Tuesday, April 25, 2017 from 6:30 PM 
to 8:30 PM, at the Seven Hills Foundation, Worcester, MA for an opportunity to connect with State 
Senators. This a great opportunity to spread public engagement with colleagues and local residents.  
 



SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  Selectman Ampagoomian 1) asked if Town Manager Kozak had an 
update on the Fire Chief Search. Town Manager Kozak replied that a meeting was held last week to review 
applications and another meeting will be held this week with the consultant. 2) asked how the Town 
Manager search was going. Town Manager Kozak replied that the Committee held their first meeting last 
week, which is what prompted the salary request to get an ad into the Beacon. 3) asked who the members 
of the Town Manger Screening Committee are. Chairman Marzec replied the members are Christopher 
Thompson, Dave Murrow, Mark Keys, Melissa Walker and Peter Lachapelle. 4) asked how the DPW 
facility was coming along. Town Manager Kozak replied that there was meeting last week and he believes 
the bids will be going out within the next two weeks. 5) sends his condolences to the Beauchamp family 
who lost Gary Beauchamp who was the youngest elected member of the Board of Selectmen in the Town 
of Northbridge. Selectman Melia 1) asked if Town Manager Kozak could mention to the Highway 
Department about configuring molasses with salt, which he explained he read an article on it and the 
reduction of water issues.  
 
Town Manager Kozak announced that in executive session Police contracts were discussed to which the 
Town Manager negotiated a one year contract with a 2% cost of living increase and an increase for $50 per 
hour for detail officers and asked the Board for a vote of support for the contract in open session. A 
motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Nolan to move the Police contract negotiations to decisions. Vote 
yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Athanas to support the Police contract as negotiated 
by the Town Manager. Vote yes/Unanimous.  
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 
CORRESPONDENCE/None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION/6:30 PM Under M.G.L Chapter 30A, S21 #3 – To discuss strategy with 
respect to contract negotiations. 
 
A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/ Unanimous.  
 
Meeting Adjourned: 8:24 PM 
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
        James Athanas, Clerk 
/mjw 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 
 

March 13, 2017 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 A. February 6, 2017 
 
II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 
 
III. APPOINTMENTS 
 B. Rochelle Thomson, Inspector of Animals/Vote to nominate  
 Note: Appointment is subject to certification by the State 
 
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT / Local Business Spotlight:  Purgatory Beer Co. LLC, 

Linwood Mill/Present: Kevin Mulvehill   
 
V. DECISIONS 
 C. Mumford Knights of Columbus #365 / 1) Application for a Change of Manager [James 

Masterson] 2) Application for a Change of Directors 3) Application for a change of Sunday 
Hours / Present: Plato Adams  

 D. Armenian Apostolic Church/1) Request to hang a banner across Church Street from April 16, 
2017 to April 30, 2017 in honor of “Martyr’s Day” 2) Request to hang a banner across Church 
Street from August 6, 2017 to August 20, 2017 to advertise their Annual Picnic to be held on 
Sunday, August 20, 2017 

 E. Pine Grove Cemetery deed/Elizabeth Austin [Lot No. 41, Hemlock Path North] 
 F Northbridge Firefighters/Request to hang a banner over Church Street from April 30, 2017 to 

May 6, 2017 to advertise the annual spaghetti supper to be held on Saturday, May 20, 2017 
 
VI. DISCUSSIONS 
 G. Recreational Marijuana Establishments –Temporary Zoning Moratorium/Present: Brian 

Massey, Planning Board Chairman & R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 
 H. Economic Development Strategic Plan/Present: Brian Massey, Planning Board Chairman & 

R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 
 I. Blackstone Valley National Heritage Corridor Commission / Northbridge Green and Clean 

Day, April 21 and 22, 2017 Present: Bonnie Combs, Marketing Director 
 J. Purple Heart Resolution/Present: William Audette 
 K. Massachusetts School Building Authority update 
 KK. Town Manager position  
 
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
 L. 1) Community Reading Program 
 2) Annual Blackstone Valley Home & Business Expo 
 3) Local Historic District Study Committee - Property Owners Informational & Feedback 

Meeting (Thursday, March 16, 2017, 7:00 PM –Town Hall) 
 4) Senator Moore Legislative Open House   
 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  



IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA 
X. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/6:30 PM Under M.G.L Chapter 30A, S21 #3 – To discuss strategy 

with respect to contract negotiations. 
 






































